
Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina and the Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Schools (CMS) Board of Education, met in Special Meeting Session for a Joint 
Meeting at Valerie C. Woodard Center, 3205 Freedom Dr Ste 1000, Charlotte, North Carolina at 
4:02 p.m. on Monday, January 8, 2026.   
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman 

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin, 
Vilma D. Leake, Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Mike Bryant 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  None 
 
 
Also in Attendance:   Crystal Hill (CMS Superintendent), André F. Mayes (attorney),  
CMS Board of Education: Stephanie Sneed (Chair), Gregory “Dee” Rankin (Vice-Chair), Lenora 
Shipp, Liz Monterrey Duvall, Rev Dr. Monty Witherspoon, Charlitta Hatch, Shamaiye Haynes, 
Cynthia Stone, and Anna London.  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, which was followed by introductions, 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and the reading of the FY2026 Board Budget Priorities. 
 
 
26-0011 JOINT MEETING BETWEEN MECKLENBURG COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Background:   A joint meeting was held between the Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners 
and Charlotte-Mecklenburg Board of Education to discuss matters of mutual interest. 
 
CMS Superintendent Dr. Crystal Hill, County Manager Michael Bryant, gave opening remarks.  
 
 
Mecklenburg County Community Collaborative – Quality of Life Indicators 
 
Director of Strategy and Innovation Michael Griswold gave the presentation along with County 
Manager Bryant and Superintendent Hill. 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Board Member Haynes asked where the community involvement landed.  County Manager 
Bryant said they had representatives from the community who were not necessarily affiliated with 
the organizations but there as a resident of the County. 
 
Board Member Shipp said she appreciated the mention of enhancing summer youth programs 
and asked how they could make that happen. She said they were looking at various ages and 
asked what they were thinking about enhancing the programs. County Manager Bryant said it 
was about more coordination and ensuring they had a more robust program. He said there were 
so many opportunities to ensure the programming responded to the needs and provided support 
while ensuring youth remained on the right track. He said they believed if they could come 
together, they could put together a program that offered a variety of services to do just that. He 
said, though it wasn’t just about money, they would be able to save so they weren’t investing and 
providing programming for the same students, and it would give them more oversight to ensure 
the programs aligned with some of the quality-of-life indicators they had identified. 
 
Board Member Monterrey-Duvall asked what the plan was to turn the ideas into reality. She 
asked if there were dollars assigned or a timeline yet. County Manager Bryant said the City, 
County, or CMS clearly could not fund it alone but there was a common interest in the goals being 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

identified, which was why they had the philanthropic community attending the meetings. He said 
the community partners were at the table to let them know there were opportunities to 
contribute. He said they had to do something, and the commitment was there.  
 
Board Member Monterrey-Duvall said if the asks were quantified, it would be easier to get the 
funding. County Manager Bryant said they were in the process of designing the framework and 
metrics before they could determine a quantified ask.   
 
Board Member Stone said as they considered the cost of living and the impact on affordable 
housing for educators, including personal childcare costs and rising healthcare costs greatly 
impacted teachers which was causing the teachers to leave. She said the increased costs 
outweighed their income. 
 
Board Member Sneed asked for clarification regarding the timeline and said it was important that 
they were intentional in reaching out. She said she was interested in knowing what strategies 
were being used to ensure they had a robust participation. Mr. Griswold said, when they 
mentioned scheduling follow up meetings with the focus groups, those were the individuals that 
participated in the original focus areas at the convening.  
 
Board Member Sneed asked if there was an opportunity for those that would be impacted the 
most to participate. Mr. Griswold said they could discuss that as they moved forward but they 
were still developing the draft strategies.  
 
Board Member Haynes said she wanted to get to where the community landed, in terms of the 
plan development itself. She said they previously established plans before the end customer got 
the chance to vet it out and they ended up doing things to people instead of for people. She said 
she was hoping the community could be a part of the plan instead of just seeing the end result.  
 
Board Member London asked if there as an opportunity to potentially look at increasing the 
number of opportunities provided to youth or for students to receive career connected learning 
for students in high school.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said similar conversations occurred about once every 10 years. He said, 
before they fixed the problem, they must identify the problem with specific objectives. He said 
the philanthropic community had always been at the table when the programs were initiated but 
he was not sure where they went after, and the public sector had to pick them up.  He said they 
should look back to see what had been done in the past.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked for clarification regarding the goal of getting to living 
wages for teachers. She requested Superintendent Hill to clarify her comments regarding her 
commitments within her budget. Superintendent Hill said the State was responsible for base 
salaries and the BOCC helped CMS support them with the supplement. She said, for the previous 
two years, CMS made realignments to their current operating budget to meet their needs. She 
said they looked at their current budget to see what they had that was not yielding the highest 
results to repurpose that funding to the increase teacher supplement.  She gave a brief description 
of the first two slides in the presentation.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap said he would be installed as the National President of Counties in July, 
and he would focus on youth and youth balance. He said the discussion was aligned with what 
he wanted to do, and he was excited about it. He said he looked forward to collaboratively 
working to improve the lives of their youth.  
 
Commissioner Powell said the State did not cover about $430 million in the previous year in 
operational support. She said the County was filling a gap that the State was not providing. She 
said she appreciated the focus on collaboration. She said she was concerned with the mention of 
land swapping. She said she was unaware of any significant pieces of land that were land banked 
for that specific purpose. She said they needed energy and commitment from the City regarding 
the rezonings. She asked where they were going to put the extra schools and fire stations because 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

there was a limited amount of land left. She said she hoped they could do a lot more in 
predevelopment.  
 
Commissioner Leake said it was good to know that the public was taking awareness to the issue 
of teacher pay. She said teacher salary had been a problem over the years. She said Teach for 
America paid 12.5% more for teachers than teachers in the classroom. She said people in 
Northern states would retire and moved to North Carolina to work. She said they were seasoned 
teachers who would receive both their retirement pay as well as salary from North Carolina.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked if land swaps included sports fields. She said she could not believe 
they were not paying a living wage and asked if other counties were. She said the public needed 
to understand that it was not just a County issue, it was a State issue as well. She said the State 
was failing them and the press needed to talk about it. County Manager Bryant said the land 
swap conversations were only just beginning. He said they had joint and individual meetings with 
the associations mentioned regarding access and addressing gaps in services within the 
community.  
 
Superintendent Hill said other counties were not meeting the living wage, especially the counties 
comparable to Mecklenburg County. She said it was not germane to Mecklenburg County; it was 
the entire State. She said the North Carolina beginning teacher base salary for 2024-2025 was 
$41,000. She said that was lower than Mississippi, Georgia, Alabama, Kentucky, West Virginia, 
South Carolina, and Tennessee. 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked how County partners were selected. She asked if they 
selected the same ones every time. She said if they were surveying only the people that were 
already there, they were missing a huge portion of people that wanted to provide input, including 
the County Commission and Board members. She said their questions could influence the 
platform they were building on. She asked what the cross-sector communication plan and the 
international destination plan was.  She said there had to be parity and equity. She asked if the 
Quality-of-Life explorer matched with the quality of life in Mecklenburg County. She requested a 
communication plan and calendar and asked what went wrong and what went right with their 
best practices.  County Manager Bryant said the County was intentional with whom they selected 
while trying to maintain a good healthy balance that would allow them to work through the 
exercise, so it was within a manageable size. He said they had 40 people, and it would be 
challenging with more.  
 
County Manager Bryant said, when he went on his listening tour, he met with CEOs and 
presidents from different sectors, and he told them he was going to host a Quality of Life 
collaborative and asked if they would like to partner and support it. He said, just because they 
were planning for the second meeting, it did not mean they would not engage others as well. He 
said the topics they were discussing and the goals identified aligned to the Board priorities. He 
said it was inclusive in community input in the form of community engagement. He said at some 
point you had to have the administrators in a room to sort through and identify strategies to 
bring forward for the Board to weigh in before finalizing. 
 
County Manager Bryant said they had to start from somewhere and it was all tied to a balanced 
scorecard. He said the Board received three updates on the scorecard, and they kept the work in 
front of the Board. He said their intent was not to close people off but to come together and be 
productive and get the product in place.  
 
Mr. Griswold said for both the education focus areas, there were strategies that spoke to the need 
for public communication regarding the value of the profession.    
 
Commissioner Altman said she appreciated the collaboration between the CMS chair and County 
Manager Bryant for their collaboration and said, to achieve full funding three years running was 
an accomplishment. She said she wanted to recognize the Chair of the County Commissioner and 
the School Board Chair for their collaboration. She said the taxpayers needed to understand the 
County had to fill a $429 million gap left by the state in the previous year.  She asked CMS if they 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

had an estimate of what it would take to bring teachers’ pay up to a living wage. She said she 
appreciated the aspects of improved coordination regarding youth workforce development 
programs. Superintendent Hill said she wanted to ensure they knew CMS would never ask the 
County for the amount it would take to get teachers up to a livable wage. She said she would 
continue to ask for roughly 5% every year for the next 5 years.  She said they planned on looking 
internally to figure out how they could redirect and come up with a number.  
 
CMS Chief Financial Officer Kelly Klutts said it would cost roughly $114 million to get teachers up 
to livable wage and $23 million a year over a five-year period. She said CMS normally only asked 
for $8-$9 million.  
 
County Manager Bryant said whatever that amount would be to move closer to a livable wage, 
the Board had to be mindful that it would be one-time funding.  He said it is known that the 
County couldn’t afford to fill the gap.  He said the State still had the responsibility to fully fund 
teacher pay and whatever solutions they came up with would be temporary. 
 
Chair Jerrell said they were in a $429 million deficit just for education. He said, with respect to 
the multiyear goal, it was only as of present, and it did not factor in several years ahead. He said 
they had to take that into consideration as they looked at the numbers.  
 
Chair Jerrell asked if they had any historical precedent of a shared budget responsibilities 
between the three entities. He said, when they looked at the way they were moving, Better 
Together was amazing. He said the alignment of their legislative agendas to lobby Raleigh was 
going to be critical for them to bring their resources together with those agendas. He said 
Mecklenburg County was 23% of the economic engine for North Carolina and coming together 
would be critical. He said he would love to discuss coming together. County Manager Bryant said 
he was not familiar with a collaboration between the three entities.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said Chapel Hill and Carboro were cities that chipped in, and they should 
invite the City to the conversation. County Manager Bryant said he believed the City Manager 
would agree. 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if they could put the $114 million into cents for 
property tax. County Manager Bryant said it would be roughly 3.8 cents more.  
 
CMS Board Chair Sneed said Chapel Hill and Carboro did not have the ability to contribute 
independently and had to seek approval through State legislature to do that.  
 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools SY24-25 Academic Outcomes 
 
CMS Chief Strategy Officer Beth Thompson gave the presentation 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 
STOPPED HERE 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Griffin said their teachers and counselors did a phenomenal job. He said he felt 
concerned because the presentation didn’t mention college and career readiness. He said the 
State wrote the learning standards and created an assessment that had levels 1-4, and anything 
less than level 4 was not indicative of mastery of the learning standards. He said growth was great 
but sound basic education dictated that students graduated college or career ready, a priority of 
the Board. He said the metrics he saw reflected differently.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said the Board invested in Read Charlotte decades ago to ensure kids were 
college and career ready but their overall performance in the National Assessment of Educational 
Progress (NAEP) had declined since 2015.  He said he was looking for a commitment to college 
and career readiness because that was the standard in North Carolina that the Supreme Court 
ruled about a sound basic education.  
 
Board Chair Sneed said the School Board was committed to ensuring students were employed, 
enrolled, or enlisted upon matriculation at graduation.  
 
Ms. Thompson said the EOG scores for reading and Math were based on what was called grade 
level proficiency and made up the school performance grades for elementary and middle schools 
in the North Carolina accountability model. She said, for a student to account for that, they had 
to achieve a level 3 for proficiency or a level 4 or 5 which was college or career level. She said the 
bar set by the State for students to hit was level 3, but CMS set there’s goals based on only levels 
4 or 5. She said Grade Level Proficiency was what the North Carolina Accountability Model was. 
 
Ms. Thompson said they had and wanted to attend to both. She said they had to acknowledge 
what the State would say they had to do in order to show the impact of their school district. She 
said CMS was attending to and reporting out consistently on the bar they set. She said GLP and 
College and Career Readiness would be focus one.  
 
Ms. Thompson said the State would re-adjust standards every few years and were actively in the 
process of doing that for English Language Arts. She said, every time they re-adjusted standards, 
they would also re-norm the assessment and say the following: “With newly adopted content 
standards, new assessments are implemented. Comparison to previous year's assessments were 
not valid due to the difference in standards”. She said they needed to consider whether standards 
and assessments had been re-normed when attempting to compare their performance to past 
performance.  
 
Ms. Thompson said NAEP assessed 4th and 8th grade students and showed how their students 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

compared on a national level. She said every state created their own assessment systems, so NAEP 
was the only entity that was national. She said they just had data reports with all their school 
performance areas, and they were seeing good gains.  
 
Commissioner Leake requested a breakdown for clarity so they could know which schools were 
failing and in what district. Ms. Thompson said she would look into her request. Ms. Hill said there 
were districts that performed phenomenally.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram congratulated the School Board and said the way the City and 
County could help would be through exposure. She said there were only about 14 high schools 
on the list, but she understood there would be a lag time before they saw the same results as 
with the middle and elementary schools. She said she would love it if the City and County became 
the premier place students wanted to work post-graduation and asked how they could partner 
with CMS to do that. Ms. Thompson said that sounded like that would be under the purview of 
the Quality-of-Life collaborative.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap said when standards changed and they looked for different outcomes, 
they would never appreciate how far they’d gotten if they kept going back to how it was in the 
past. He said he looked forward to improvement and it was the best that could be expected.  Ms. 
Thompson said other districts nationally had noticed and they all wanted to visit to see what they 
were doing. She said the improvements they were seeing were not happening across the county.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked why the American Indian students dropped so much 
in early literacy. She asked if the Hispanic demographic was the lowest scoring because of the 
funding cuts pertaining to ESL programs and other cuts. Ms. Thompson said the Native American 
students were a very small population in the school and if a group was smaller, their data could 
change drastically by one student not being proficient. She said their Hispanic student group was 
a group that was not growing at the rate she would like to see, and they would have to look at 
what needed to change. She said the data did not reflect the budget cuts.  
 
Board Chair Sneed said, though it was not presented, CMS had the highest rate of growth in the 
State in terms of English Language Learners. Ms. Thompson said they had to acknowledge that, 
just because a student was learning English, it did not make it easy to learn something else in 
English. She said they had to acknowledge what they were asking of children.  
 
Commissioner Dunlap said, given the disruption from the presence of Immigration Enforcement 
agents in the County, they could anticipate things would look different in the following year.  
 
Chair Jerrell congratulated CMS and said the leadership and planning made a difference. He said 
Commissioner Leake led a charge for accountability years prior which started the ball rolling. He 
said it was a difficult discussion, but he believed they were better for it.  He said Chair Sneed was 
chair of the Black Political Caucus during that time and they were extremely instrumental in 
backing a plan of accountability. He said her leadership was instrumental along with community 
organizations that came together. He said several members of the Board were actively 
participating in the movement.  
 
 
Mecklenburg County Budget Landscape 
 
Budget Director Adrian Cox gave the presentation 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 
 
Comments 
 
Board Chair Sneed said she did not see the County’s operating funds and how they increased or 
decreased over time or where the discretionary funds went. She said she knew they had 
opportunities for community funding from community organizations and nonprofits, but she 
wondered if there was an opportunity for coordination to determine if there was an actual need 
before the funding was granted. Mr. Cox said they had a balanced budget, and it did grow every 
year. He said some growth was from natural growth and some from tax rate increases. He said a 
lot of that was driven by the expenses and needs of the County. He said discretionary funds went 
to the most important needs in the County. He said it would be different each year. He said there 
may be some opportunity to look closely at their process with nonprofits to ensure they were 
doing things the right way. He said they were funding some additional funds to Meck Pre-K 
because the salaries were not keeping up. He said that was part of what the State was not doing. 
He said the analysis to determine if it would be cheaper to have one program as opposed to 
separate programs had not yet been performed.  
 
Board Member Haynes asked what the purpose of presenting the conceptual budget outlook was 
because, although it said it was not an official budget estimate, it showed the same percentage 
of funding to CMS, but it also showed a budget gap. She said it led her to believe they were 
attempting to lower the expectations of the school board. Mr. Cox said they showed a conceptual 
budget because it was too early in the budget process to give accurate numbers. He said a lot of 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

the revenue the County received was from just the previous week and through February. He said, 
in terms of revenue, he did not believe it would be much different. County Manager Bryant said 
the conceptual budget outlook was given to present a reality, not to lower expectations. He said 
the $484 million mentioned was being utilized to cover expenses the State did not. He said the 
3-4% growth in revenue did not keep pace with the demand. He said they had to have tough 
conversations pertaining to investments the County made over the years.  
 
Board Member Monterrey-Duvall said she was grateful to the BOCC for their dedication to public 
education. She said she was worried about the impact from the federal cuts and the impacts that 
would inevitably fall on them. She said, while they were seeking the additional $114M, they 
already had $110M on the line. She said there was a perception that the County spent more on 
parks than they did on education and requested further insight. Mr. Cox said Park and Recreation 
budget was about $70 million in operating and the CMS budget was $666.1 million in operating 
so the County did not spend more money on parks. He said the federal funding issue was 
something they were watching because they too would be impacted. He said property tax was 
the only route the County could levy.  
 
County Manager Bryant said they felt it was important to share with CMS a multi-year look that 
highlighted tax rate increases as well. He said on July 1st, 2026, the one cent sales tax would go 
into effect. He said voters also approved a tax rate increase though the bond referendum as well. 
He said it was important to not only factor the federal government and their funding level but 
also that some of the tax rate increase commitments had already been made.   
 
Board Member Shipp asked what made Meck Pre-K and Bright Beginnings Pre-K different. Mr. 
Cox said Meck Pre-K and NC Pre-K and Bright Beginnings might have had different eligibility 
requirements.  
 
Board Member Shipp said they should begin to talk about the funding for the Pre-K programs if 
they could begin to collapse the programs into one. 
 
Board member Rankin asked if the one cent possible tax increases were for bond debts. Mr. Cox 
said that was correct and explained the increases.  
 
 
Charlotte-Mecklenburg Schools Budget Landscape 2023 Bond Update 
 
Chief Finance Officer Kelly Kluttz gave the presentation 

 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

Chief Operations Officer Tim Ivey gave the presentation 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

 

 

 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Powell said everything about public health mattered including education which 
was all connected. She said with regard to park and recreation, it was a very unhealthy narrative 
to get the County to pit one thing against the other because it all mattered and parks were 
underfunded and many park employees were nowhere near a livable wage. She said the Boards 
discretionary funding was all essential to quality of life. She reiterated the lack of funding received 
from the State.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if the projected enrollment numbers were pre-ICE. She 
asked if there were other projections or ones they were working on related to how those would 
affect everything. She asked if the State average of enrollments trends included charter schools 
or private schools and if that would be impacted by the voucher situation. She said she thought 
federal funds were Title 1 and supplemental meant added or extra and requested clarification 
regarding that. Ms. Klutz said the numbers were pre-ICE. She said they were measured in the first 
or second months so their funding would still be on their original number, and they would have 
some time to recover by August or September. She said the average enrollments did in fact include 
public charters but not for private or homeschool.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if the numbers corelated. Ms. Klutz said it was difficult 
to get the homeschool and private school numbers. She said Title 1 funding was one of their 



Meeting Minutes 
January 8, 2026 

largest portions of federal funding, however it was considered supplemental because it was the 
expectation for the State to provide a sound basic education and the federal contribution was in 
addition to the State.  

Commissioner Meier asked if there was a correlation between decreased enrollment and 
exceeding goals. Ms. Klutz said she did not believe so. Ms. Thompson said there was no correlation 
and the performance of schools or students was based on the percentage of students.  

Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked for confirmation that the State had not yet issued a 
budget and how they continued to operate without those funds. She asked if there was a 
correlation between the performance of the schools and them getting a new school or upgrades. 
Ms. Klutts said there was a continuum budget in place, and they were operating as normal but 
with no increases in cost of living or pay increases for staff. Ms. Thompson said there was broader 
research in education that the quality of the building positively impacted a student’s achievement 
though they had not done that depth of research in CMS. 

Commissioner Dunlap said there was always someone that would like to pit the County against 
the School Board.  He said the budget request increased when student enrollment went up, but 
when enrollment went down, the budget still increased. He said it didn’t matter; the budget 
always went up and he wanted to ensure the community knew the Board’s commitment to CMS. 

Commissioner Leake said County Manager Bryant and Superintendent Hill came together as a 
body working. She said they were all present to ensure the children got the best education 
possible, regardless of where they came from or went. She gave praise to Chair Jerrell and said 
she hoped coming together would bring a better community.  

Commissioner Griffin asked, while giving respect to birth rates, both nationally and locally, if 
there was a way to determine a rough estimate of their market share with consideration to the 
school board residing in the same market as private and charter schools. Ms. Kluttz said they 
were working on establishing a very rough estimate, but it was difficult to get number of home 
school numbers.  

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said she wanted to reiterate the impact the ICE situation 
would have on the numbers. She said it seemed those impacts would continue if things continued 
the way they were going.   

Board Chair Sneed said, as a part of the same community, the CMS School Board had been asking 
how they could improve collaboration with the Board of County Commissioners, and she 
determined it would be in a fiscal manner. She said to do that; they had to have intentional and 
open conversations about their information. She said she was confident it would happen under 
the leadership of Superintendent Hill and County Manager Bryant. She said she hoped that in the 
future, the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Education could share a day of their retreats 
together to have meaningful conversation.   

Chair Jerrell gave thanks to the production team, Board Chair Sneed, Superintendent Hill, and 
County Manager Bryant. He said Superintendent Hill and County Manager Bryant had charted a 
new course for their Boards under their leadership.  

ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Jerrell declared the meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board Mark Jerrell, Chair 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


